
           
The City of Muskogee encourages participation from all its citizens in public meetings. If participation is not possible due to a disability,
notify the City Clerk, in writing, at least forty-eight hours prior to the scheduled meeting and necessary accommodations will be made (ADA
28 CFR/36).

(Public Comment during Public Hearing or Agenda item comment)

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments on agenda items and public hearings to five (5) minutes and general comments for
non-agenda items to (3) minutes.. Any person desiring to address the Committee during such period is required to sign in with the City Clerk
prior to the Committee meeting between 3:30 p.m. and 3:45 p.m. on the third floor of City Hall or any time between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. in
the Office of the City Clerk, They shall provide their name, address and specify the agenda item they wish to address. Remarks shall be
directed to the matter being considered and the speaker is allowed to speak only one time. If written materials are to be submitted twelve (12)
copies should be made available, and may not be returned.

Agenda
Finance Committee

January 2, 2018
5:30 P.M. - City Council Chambers

 
Mayor Bob Coburn to recognize Kenneth Woodworth as Employee of the Month for December
2017.

 

           
1. Consider approval of Finance Committee minutes of December 5, 2017.
 

2. Consider approval of claims for all City departments November 30, 2017 through December 18,
2017.

 

3. Consider approval to accept the lowest and best bids from Forrest Shoemaker Air Conditioning
in the amount of $49,219.00 plus alternate 1.5 for stainless steel cold water basins: $3,167.00
and alternate 1.7 for stainless steel hot decks: $3,318.00 in the total of $55,704.00 for the
replacement of the Muskogee Civic Center cooling tower, or take other necessary action. ( Billy
Coffer)

 

4. Consider approval to receive donated funds in the amount of $1,790.00 to be shared
equally between the Parks Department for use at the Bark Park and by the City's Animal Shelter
Sponsorship Program, or take other necessary action. (Mark Wilkerson/Rex Eskridge)

 

5. Consider approval to receive donated funds for the month of November 2017, in the amount of
$12,946.23 for the City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Program as per the attached list, or take
other necessary action. (Rex Eskridge) 

 



   
Finance Committee 1.           
Meeting Date: 01/02/2018  
Initiator: Ashley Wallace, Office Adm 1
Department: City Clerk
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of Finance Committee minutes of December 5, 2017.

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
12-05-2017 finmin 



MINUTES
FINANCE COMMITTEE

December 5, 2017
 

 

 
 

The Finance Committee of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, met at 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, December 5, 2017 in Council Chambers, Third
Floor, Municipal Building, with the following in attendance:

Deputy Mayor James Gulley recognized Karen Finley as Employee of the Month for December 2017.

Present: Deputy Mayor James Gulley; Committee Member Janey Boydston; Committee Member
Marlon Coleman; Committee Member Dan Hall; Committee Member Wayne Johnson;
Committee Member Derrick Reed; Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Absent: Mayor John R. Coburn; Committee Member Patrick Cale 

Staff
Present:

Mike Miller, City Manager; Mike Stewart, Asst City Manager; Roy Tucker, City Attorney;
Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk; Gary Garvin, City Planner; Greg Riley, Public Works Director;
Matthew Beese, Assistant City Attorney; Rex Eskridge, Police Chief; Jim Wixom, Assistant
Public Works Director, Operations 

 

               
1. Consider approval of Finance Committee minutes of November 21, 2017.   
 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Janey Boydston, seconded by Committee

Member Wayne Johnson to approve Finance Committee minutes of November 21, 2017. 

  AYE:  Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Committee Member Janey Boydston, Committee
Member Marlon Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member
Wayne Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory
Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
2. Consider approval of claims for all City departments November 16, 2017 through November

29, 2017.
  

 
  Motion was made by Deputy Mayor James Gulley, seconded by Committee Member

Janey Boydston to approve claims for all City departments November 16, 2017 through
November 29, 2017. 

  AYE:  Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Committee Member Janey Boydston, Committee
Member Marlon Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member
Wayne Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory
Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 



3. Consider approval to accept the Engineering Services Agreement from Holloway, Updike and
Bellen, Inc. (HUB), for professional services for the plans and specifications for
construction of the Civitan Drainage Basin Improvements in the amount of $112,900.00, or
take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

Public Works Director Greg Riley stated this project was included as part of the projects to be
completed using the Oklahoma Water Resources Board (OWRB) loan that was secured in
April of this year.  A study of the Civitan Drainage Basin was included as part of the original
contract for the OWRB projects.  This contract will complete the design of the projects that
were found necessary within the study.  The project completes the drainage from Bonnie
Lane to Country Club Road within the Civitan Basin.  This is an area that experiences
significant flooding and has some major maintenance problems.  The project will reduce the
flooding frequency and help minimize the needed maintenance through the basin.

  

 
  Motion was made by Deputy Mayor James Gulley, seconded by Committee Member

Wayne Johnson to approve Engineering Services Agreement from Holloway, Updike and
Bellen, Inc. (HUB), for professional services for the plans and specifications for
construction of the Civitan Drainage Basin Improvements in the amount of $112,900.00. 

  AYE:  Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Committee Member Janey Boydston, Committee
Member Marlon Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member
Wayne Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory
Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
4. Consider approval of best bid from Rehrig Pacific in the amount of $53.51 per cart for the

purchase of 1,916 residential refuse carts for fiscal year 2017-2018, or take other necessary
action. (Greg Riley)

Public Works Director Greg Riley stated bids were invited and six (6) responses were
received.  Tabulation sheet is attached.
     *Cascade Engineering Inc.does not meet specifications.
     *Otto Environmental Systems does not meet specifications.
     *Toter Inc. submitted a no bid letter.
     *IPL Inc. does not meet specifications.
     *Schaefer Systems Intl Inc. bid $48.63 and meets specifications.
     *Rehrig Pacific bid was most complete and their product meets city specifications.

The City of Muskogee currently has approximately 13,000 Rehrig carts.  The Purchasing
Committee chose this cart after review of several different carts  in 2004.  Rehrig Pacific,
Company has represented their cart as stated and honored their warranty when needed.  Mr.
Riley believes it is in the City's best interest to stay consistent in the type of container used as
our supervisors carry spare parts in their trucks for minor repair of carts.  Having two
(2) types of carts in service would require carrying multiple types of parts to make quick
repairs.  The size, shape, and color of the carts will remain consistent throughout the City to
avoid any confusion with private carriers.  The City has been pleased with the service of
Rehrig and has developed a comfort level with their carts and the company.  We know what
to expect in performance and service.   

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Janey Boydston, seconded by Deputy Mayor



  Motion was made by Committee Member Janey Boydston, seconded by Deputy Mayor
James Gulley to approve best bid from Rehrig Pacific in the amount of $53.51 per cart for
the purchase of 1,916 residential refuse carts for fiscal year 2017-2018. 

  AYE:  Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Committee Member Janey Boydston, Committee
Member Marlon Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member
Wayne Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory
Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
5. Consider approval of awarding a construction contract to the lowest and best bidder, Cook's

Consulting, for the construction of Wastewater System Improvements - Port Lift Station
Replacement in the amount of $2,280,000.00, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

Public Works Director Greg Riley stated the Wastewater Improvements, Port Lift Station
Replacement Project includes the complete replacement of three (3) aging lift stations along
the river.  This project includes station numbers 2, 3 and 4.  The recently installed control
panels will be reused within this project which will result in significant savings on the overall
project.  The time allowed for completion of the project is 400 Days.

Plans were completed and five (5) bids were received for the construction of the project on
November 21, 2017.  The bids are listed below and the tabulation is attached.
     Cook's Consulting                         $2,280,000.00
     BRB Contractors, Inc.                   $2,890,000.00
     Crossland Heavy Contractors       $3,345,000.00
     McGuire Brothers Construction     $3,459,600.00
     Wynn Construction                        $3,530,000.00
     Engineer's Estimate                      $3,000,000.00

Discussions have taken place with the contractor and he is confident he can complete the
work as bid and within the time allowed.  Cook Consulting recently completed an identical
lift station in Ft. Gibson providing confidence in this bid.  We believe that Cook's Consulting
is capable of performing the work and should be awarded the contract.

This project is part of the Oklahoma Water Resources Board (OWRB) loan and is budgeted as
part of the loan.  The bid price is lower than budgeted.  

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Janey Boydston, seconded by Committee

Member Wayne Johnson to approve awarding a construction contract to the lowest and
best bidder, Cook's Consulting, for the construction of Wastewater System Improvements
- Port Lift Station Replacement in the amount of $2,280,000.00. 

  AYE:  Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Committee Member Janey Boydston, Committee
Member Marlon Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member
Wayne Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory
Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
6.   



6. Consider the approval of receiving donated funds for the month of October 2017, in the
amount of $1,013.00 for the City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Program as per the attached
list, or take other necessary action. (Rex Eskridge)

Police Chief Rex Eskridge stated City Council approved a Resolution authorizing a
Sponsorship Program for the City's Animal Shelter with said funds to be used for the purpose
of neutering and spaying shelter animals.

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Marlon Coleman, seconded by Committee

Member Janey Boydston to approve receiving donated funds for the month of October
2017, in the amount of $1,013.00 for the City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Program as
per the attached list. 

  AYE:  Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Committee Member Janey Boydston, Committee
Member Marlon Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member
Wayne Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed, Committee Member Ivory
Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
 

CHAIRMAN DERRICK REED
FINANCE COMMITTEE
finmin
TT/aw



   
Finance Committee 2.           
Meeting Date: 01/02/2018  
Initiator: Donnie Wimbley, Purchasing Director
Department: Purchasing
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of claims for all City departments November 30, 2017 through December 18, 2017.

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Claims 























   
Finance Committee 3.           
Meeting Date: 01/02/2018  
Initiator: Donnie Wimbley, Purchasing Director
Department: Purchasing
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval to accept the lowest and best bids from Forrest Shoemaker Air Conditioning in the
amount of $49,219.00 plus alternate 1.5 for stainless steel cold water basins: $3,167.00 and alternate 1.7
for stainless steel hot decks: $3,318.00 in the total of $55,704.00 for the replacement of the Muskogee
Civic Center cooling tower, or take other necessary action. ( Billy Coffer)

BACKGROUND:
The Muskogee Civic Center cooling tower is over 30 years old and in great need of replacement which
is evident by the continual water leaking from it onto the sidewalk and into the street on the east side of
the Civic Center on South 4th street. This will replace the existing galvanized unit with stainless steel
which will increase the life expectancy to 30 years for the new unit. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
 Approve to accept the lowest and best bids from Forrest Shoemaker Air Conditioning in the amount of
$49,219.00; alternate 1.5 for stainless steel cold water basins; $3,167.00 and alternate 1.7 for stainless
steel hot decks; $3,318.00 in the total of $55,704.00, or take other necessary action.

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
213-9040-450-61-.55

Attachments
Tabulation Sheet 





   
Finance Committee 4.           
Meeting Date: 01/02/2018  
Initiator: Marsha Wiseman, Admin Assistant
Department: City Manager
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval to receive donated funds in the amount of $1,790.00 to be shared equally between the
Parks Department for use at the Bark Park and by the City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Program, or
take other necessary action. (Mark Wilkerson/Rex Eskridge)

BACKGROUND:
On October 29, 2017, supporters put on the First Ever Schnitzel Stampede at the City's Bark Park, with
over 200 dachshunds in attendance, along with their owner families and others.  The event featured food
trucks, artists, vendors, pet-micro-chipping, a photographer, and dog rescue groups. Proceeds from the
per-dog entry fee (humans were free) are to benefit the Bark Park and the Animal Shelter.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve receiving donated funds in the amount of $1790.00 for the City's Bark Park and for the Animal
Shelter Sponsorship Program.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Finance Committee 5.           
Meeting Date: 01/02/2018  
Submitted For:  Rex Eskridge, Police  Initiator: Gayle Johnson, Chief

Secretary
Department: Police
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval to receive donated funds for the month of November 2017, in the amount of
$12,946.23 for the City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Program as per the attached list, or take
other necessary action. (Rex Eskridge) 

BACKGROUND:
City Council approved a Resolution authorizing a Sponsorship Program for the City's Animal Shelter
with said funds to be used for the purpose of neutering and spaying shelter animals. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve receiving donated funds for the month of November 2017, in the amount of $12,946.23 for the
City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Agenda Item Title.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Nov donations 



pg. 1

Animal Shelter Donations for 2017

November

Declan Beattie $ 10.00

Tammy Runabout 10.00

Shawn Long 11.00

David Price 5.00

Antonio Salas 8.00

John Edson 65.00

Stefani Vilardo 10.00

Jamie Cope 65.00

Donna Lawson 140.00

Christy Murray 30.00

Castle of Muskogee 12,562.23

Diane Layne 10.00

Kevin Crow 20.00

Total: $ 12,946.23


	Agenda
	_1.   _1.__7003
	    12-05-2017 finmin
	_2.   _2.__7001
	    Claims
	_3.   _3._Civic Center Cooling Tower
	    Tabulation Sheet
	_4.   _4._Receipt of Donations Bark Park and Animal Shelter
	_5.   _5._Animal Shelter Donations
	    Nov donations

